
 
 

Goshen Common Council 
6:00 p.m., August 15, 2022  Regular Meeting 

Council Chamber, Police & Court Building, 111 East Jefferson Street, Goshen, IN 
 
 
Call to Order by Mayor Jeremy Stutsman 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call:  
Megan Eichorn (District 4)  Julia King (At-Large)  Doug Nisley (District 2) 
Gilberto Pérez, Jr. (District 5)  Donald Riegsecker (District 1)         
Matt Schrock (District 3)  Council President Brett Weddell (At-Large)       
Youth Advisor Karen C. Velazquez Valdes (Non-voting)  
 
Approval of Minutes – July 18, 2022 Regular Meetings (to be emailed) 

 

Approval of Meeting Agenda 

 

Privilege of the Floor 

 

1)  Ordinance 5131: An Ordinance Establishing Common Council Districts for the City of 
Goshen based on the 2020 Decennial Census Redistricting (Second Reading) 
 

2)  Resolution 2022-19: Category Transfer ($90,000 transfer within the Motor Vehicle 
Highway Fund from Capital Outlays to Supplies for street/alley/sewer maintenance) 

 

3)  Resolution 2022-20: Resolution of the Common Council of the City of Goshen Approving 
the Order of the Goshen Plan Commission (Indiana Avenue Allocation Area) 

 

Elected Official Reports 

 

Adjournment 

G~L. 
JOSr1en 

THE MAPLE CITY 

• 



ORDINANCE 5131 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING COMMON COUNCIL DISTRICTS 
FOR THE CITY OF GOSHEN BASED ON THE 2020 DECENNIAL CENSUS 

WHEREAS Indiana Code § 36-4-6-4(b) and (g)(1) requires the Common Council to adopt 
an ordinance to divide the city into five (5) districts during the second year after a year in which 
a federal decennial census is conducted. 

WHEREAS the Redistricting Advisory Commission established by Ordinance 5116 has 
submitted a recommendation to the Goshen Common Council for the division of the city into 
five (5) districts, along with the accompanying map and report. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Goshen Common Council: 

SECTION 1. Division of City into Five Districts 
(a) All territory within the corporate limits of the City of Goshen shall be divided into the

following five (5) districts.  The districts are composed of contiguous territory; are
reasonably compact; do not cross precinct boundary lines except as provided by 36-4-6-4
(c) or (d); and contain, as nearly as possible, equal population.  Each district is depicted
on the map attached to this Ordinance.
(1) DISTRICT ONE.  District One shall consist of the following areas:

(A) Concord Township Precincts 31 and 32;
(B) Elkhart Township Precinct 01;
(C) Elkhart Township Precinct 05, Census Blocks 1014, 3006, 3007, 3008, 3009,

3010, and 3011;
(D) Elkhart Township Precinct 06;
(E) Harrison Township Precinct 01.

(2) DISTRICT TWO.  District Two shall consist of the following areas:
(A) Elkhart Township Precinct 05, Census Blocks 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004,

2009, and 2010;
(B) Elkhart Township Precinct 07, Census Blocks 2007 (GEOID

180390005022007), 2012 (GEOID 180390005022012), 2013 (GEOID
180390005022013), 2017 (GEOID 180390005022017), 2018 (GEOID
180390005022018), 2019 (GEOID 180390005022019), 2020, 2021, 2022
(GEOID 180390005022022), and 4000;

(C) Elkhart Township Precinct 08, Census Blocks 1004, 1005, 1018, 1019, 1020
(GEOID 180390005021020), 1021 (GEOID 180390005021021), 1022 (GEOID
180390005021022), 1023(GEOID 180390005021023), 1024, 1025, 1026
(GEOID 180390005021026), 1027 (GEOID 180390005021027), 1033 (GEOID
180390005021033), 1034 (GEOID 180390005021034), 1035 (GEOID
180390005021035), 1036 (GEOID 180390005021036), 1037 (GEOID



180390005021037), 1038 (GEOID 180390005021038), 2002 (GEOID 
180390005022002), 2003 (GEOID 180390005022003), 2004 (GEOID 
180390005022004), 2005 (GEOID 180390005022005), 2006 (GEOID 
180390005022006), 2009 (GEOID 180390005022009), 2010 (GEOID 
180390005022010), 2011 (GEOID 180390005022011), 2023, 3002, 3003, 3004, 
and 3019; 

(D) Elkhart Township Precincts 09 and 10; and 
(E) Elkhart Township Precinct 11, Census Blocks 3001, 3005, 3006, 3007, 3008, 

3009, 3010, 3011, 3012, 3013, 3014, 3015, 3016, 3017, 3018, and 3020. 
(3) DISTRICT THREE.  District Three shall consist of the following areas: 

(A) Concord Township Precincts 27 and 33; 
(B) Elkhart Township Precinct 03; 
(C) Elkhart Township Precinct 04, Census Blocks 1002, 1003, 1007, 1008 

(GEOID 180390002021008), 1008 (GEOID 180390003021008), 1009 (GEOID 
180390002021009), 1010, 1011, 1012, 1014, 1015, 1016, 1017, 1018, 1019, 
1020, 1021, 1022, 1023, 1024, 1025, 1026, 1027, 1029, 1030, 1032, 1033, 1034, 
3000, 3001, 3002, 3003, 3004, 3005, 3006, 3007, 3008, 3009, 3010, 3011, 3012, 
3013, 3014, 3015, 3016, and 3017; 

(D) Elkhart Township Precinct 07, Census Blocks 2001, 2005, 2006, 2007 
(GEOID 180390002012007), 2008 (GEOID 180390002012008), 2008 (GEOID 
180390005022008), 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 (GEOID 180390002012012), 
2013(GEOID 180390002012013), 2014 (GEOID 180390002012014), 2014 
(GEOID 180390005022014), 2015(GEOID 180390002012015), 2015 (GEOID 
180390005022015), 2016 (GEOID 180390002012016), 2016 (GEOID 
180390005022016), 2017 (GEOID 180390002012017), 2018 (GEOID 
180390002012018), 2019 (GEOID 180390002012019), 2022 (GEOID 
180390002012022), 2023, 4008, 4009, 4010; 

(E) Elkhart Township Precinct 08, Census Blocks 1000, 1001, 1002, 1003, 1006, 
1007, 1008, 1009, 1010 (GEOID 180390002011010), 1010 (GEOID 
180390005021010), 1011 (GEOID 180390002011011), 1011 (GEOID 
180390005021011), 1012 (GEOID 180390002011012), 1012 (GEOID 
180390005021012), 1013 (GEOID 180390002011013), 1013 (GEOID 
180390005021013), 1014 (GEOID 180390002011014), 1014 (GEOID 
180390005021014), 1015 (GEOID 180390002011015), 1015 (GEOID 
180390005021015), 1016 (GEOID 180390002011016), 1016 (GEOID 
180390005021016), 1017 (GEOID 180390002011017), 1017 (GEOID 
180390005021017), 1020 (GEOID 180390002011020), 1021 (GEOID 
180390002011021), 1022 (GEOID 180390002011022), 1023 (GEOID 
180390002011023), 1026 (GEOID 180390002011026), 1027 (GEOID 
180390002011027), 1028 (GEOID 180390002011028), 1029 (GEOID 



180390002011029), 1030 (GEOID 180390002011030), 1031 (GEOID 
180390002011031), 1032 (GEOID 180390002011032), 1033 (GEOID 
180390002011033), 1034 (GEOID 180390002011034), 1035 (GEOID 
180390002011035), 1036 (GEOID 180390002011036), 1037 (GEOID 
180390002011037), 1038 (GEOID 180390002011038), 2000 (GEOID 
180390005022000), 2006 (GEOID 180390001002006), 2026, and 2027; and 

(F) Jefferson Township Precinct 02.
(4) DISTRICT FOUR.  District Four shall consist of the following areas:

(A) Elkhart Township Precinct 04, Census Block 1009(GEOID
180390003021009);

(B) Elkhart Township Precinct 08, Census Blocks 1028 (GEOID
180390005021028), 1029 (GEOID 180390005021029), 1030 (GEOID
180390005021030), 1031 (GEOID 180390005021031), 1032 (GEOID
180390005021032), 2000 (GEOID 180390001002000), 2001, 2002 (GEOID
180390001002002), 2003 (GEOID 180390001002003), 2004 (GEOID
180390001002004), 2005 (GEOID 180390001002005), 2009 (GEOID
180390001002009), 2010 (GEOID 180390001002010), 2011 (GEOID
180390001002011), and 2012;

(C) Elkhart Township Precinct 11, Census Blocks 2007, 2008, 2013, 2014, 2015,
2016, 2017, 2018, 2019, 2024, 2027, and 3000;

(D) Elkhart Township Precinct 12, Census Blocks 1029, 1030, 1031, 1032, 1039,
1040, 1041, 1042, 1043, 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023, 2025, 2026, 2028, 2029, 2030,
2031, 2032, 2033, 2034, 2035, 2036, 2037, and 2038;

(E) Elkhart Township Precinct 13;
(F) Elkhart Township Precinct 14, Census Blocks 3001, 3002, 3003, 3004, 3005,

3006, 3007, 3008, 3009, 3010, 3011, 3012, 3013, 3014, 3015, 3016, 3017, 3018,
3019, 3020, 3021, 3022, 3023, 3024, 3025, 3026, 3027, 3028, 3029, 3030, 3031,
3032, 4006, 4007, 4008, 4009, and 4010; and

(G) Elkhart Township Precinct 15.
(5) DISTRICT FIVE.  District Five shall consist of the following areas:

(A) Elkhart Township Precinct 12, Census Blocks 1004, 1005, 1006, 1007, 1008,
1016, 1017, 2000, 2001, 2002, 2004;

(B) Elkhart Township Precinct 14, Census Blocks 1000, 1001, 1002, 1003, 1009,
1010, 1011, 1012, 1013, 1014, 1015, 1018, 1019, 1020, 1021, 2005, 2006, 2007,
2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2016, 2018, 5007, 5008, 5011, and 5012; and

(C) Elkhart Township Precincts 17, 18, 19, 20, and 21.
(b) For the purposes of this ordinance, the corporate limits of the City of Goshen and the

precincts refer to the corporate boundary lines or precinct boundary lines as existing on
the date of the adoption of this Ordinance.

SECTION 2. Common Council Members; Voting for Candidates 



The Goshen Common Council is composed of five (5) members elected from the districts 
established in Section 1, with one (1) member elected from each of the districts, as well as two 
(2) at-large members.  Each voter of the city may vote for two (2) candidates for at-large
membership and one (1) candidate from the district in which the voter resides.  The two (2) at-
large candidates receiving the most votes from the whole city and the district candidates
receiving the most votes from their respective districts are elected to the Goshen Common
Council.

SECTION 3. Repeal of Prior Ordinances 

This ordinance repeals Ordinance Number 4719.  All ordinances, or parts thereof, that 
are inconsistent, or conflict, with the terms of this ordinance are repealed to the extent of the 
inconsistency or conflict. 

SECTION 4. Severability Clause 

If any provision of this ordinance shall be held invalid, such provision shall be deemed 
severable and the invalidity thereof shall not affect the remaining provisions of this ordinance. 

SECTION 5. Effective Date 

This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval and 
adoption according to the laws of the State of Indiana. 

SECTION 6. Filing of Ordinance 

The Clerk-Treasurer is instructed to file a copy of this ordinance, along with a map of the 
district boundaries, with the Elkhart County Circuit Court Clerk no later than thirty (30) days 
after the ordinance is adopted. 

PASSED by the Goshen Common Council on the  day of , 2022. 

Presiding Officer 
ATTEST: 

Richard R. Aguirre, Clerk-Treasurer 

PRESENTED to the Mayor of the City of Goshen on the  day of 
, 2022, at the hour of _____:_____ ___.m. 

Richard R. Aguirre, Clerk-Treasurer 



APPROVED and ADOPTED on the  day of , 2022. 

Jeremy P. Stutsman, Mayor 



GOSHEN

GOSHEN

GOSHEN

G
O
S
H
E
N

GOSHEN

E

lkhartR
iver

E
l khartRiver

Tu
rk
ey

C
re
ek

FiddlerPond

£¤33

£¤33

£¤33

¬«119

¬«15

¬«15

¬«4
In
di
an
a 
A
ve

Rie
thBlvd

3r
d 
S
t

Lincoln Ave

C
R
17

WaterfordMillsPkwy

Madison St

Re
ge
ntSt

CR

45

PeddlersVillageRd

CR 20

CR 38

CR
 1
5

WWildenAve

CR 28

Monroe St
CR 34

C
R
 1
3

Kercher Rd

G
re
en
e 
R
d

Bashor Rd

M
ai
n
S
t

College Ave

C
R
 1
7

D
ie
rd
or
ff 
R
d

C
R
 2
1

R
iv
er
 A
ve

Berkey Ave

C
R
23

C
R
29

Mid
dle

bur
y S

t

O
ld
 C
R
 1
7

O
ld
 C
R
 1
7

R
el
ia
nc
e 
R
d

CR142

Z
ol
lin
ge
r 
R
d

C
R
 1
13

Midway Rd

C
R
 2
3

CR 40

CR 26

C
R
 1
9

C
R
 3
1

CR 20

CR 42

CR 36

CR 38

C
R
 2
1

C
R
 1
27

CR 42

CR140
C
R
115

C
R
 1
27

CR
 2
2

CR
126

CR 32

C
R
 1
5

C
R
 2
9

C
R
 2
7

CR 138

CR 40

CR 24

CR 28

C
R
 3
1

C
R
29

C
R
 2
7

C
R
 1
17

C
R
 1
9

CR 44

C
R
 1
21

CR 26

CR 36

CR 30

CR 138

Dierdorff
Rd

±
This map does not constitute a survey nor an engineering drawing. The map and any information shown on it is not warranted for
accuracy, merchantability, or fitness for a particular purpose. Reliance is at the user’s risk. Copying or other reproduction
of this map and any information shown on it is prohibited without the prior written permission of the County of Elkhart, Indiana.

0 1
Miles

Goshen City Council District 1

Goshen City Council District 2

Goshen City Council District 3

Goshen City Council District 4

Goshen City Council District 5

Goshen City Council Districts Option 3

D 
D 

D 
D 

D 



GOSHEN COMMON COUNCIL 
Resolution 2022-19 

 
Category Transfer 

 
WHEREAS it is necessary to transfer funds budget categories to cover expenses.  
 
WHEREAS certain existing budget appropriations have unobligated funds that are available for the 
category transfer.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Goshen Common Council approves the transfer of funds 
within the Motor Vehicle Highway Fund between the following budget categories: 
 
 

CATEGORY TRANSFER FROM: 
 Budget Category: 

Line Number: 
Line Name: 
Amount of the Transfer: 

Capital Outlays 
201-530-00-440.0401 
MVH / Equipment, Motor Vehicles 
($90,000.00) 

   
CATEGORY TRANSFER TO: 
 Budget Category: 

Line Number: 
Line Name: 
Amount of the Transfer: 

Supplies 
201-530-00-423.0135 
MVH / Street, Alley and Sewer Maintenance 
$90,000.00 

 
 
 
PASSED by the Goshen Common Council on August _________, 2022. 
 
 
             
       Presiding Officer 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Richard R. Aguirre, Clerk-Treasurer 
 
PRESENTED to the Mayor of the City of Goshen on August _________, 2022, at __________ a.m./p.m. 
 
 
             
       Richard R. Aguirre, Clerk-Treasurer 
 
APPROVED and ADOPTED on August _________, 2021. 
 
 
             
       Jeremy P. Stutsman, Mayor 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-20 

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GOSHEN APPROVING THE ORDER OF THE GOSHEN PLAN 
COMMISSION 

WHEREAS, the City of Goshen ("City") Redevelopment Commission ("Commission") 
has created, consolidated and enlarged the Consolidated River Race/US 33 Economic 
Development Area ("Area"), and an allocation area coterminous with the Area known as the 
Consolidated River Race/US 33 Allocation Area ("Original Allocation Area") in accordance with 
IC 36-7-14-39 for the purpose of capturing real property taxes generated from the incremental 
assessed value of real property located in the Original Allocation Area, and adopted an economic 
development plan, as amended (collectively, "Original Plan"), pursuant to Declaratory Resolution 
No. 02-2012 (as amended to date), as confirmed by Confirmatory Resolution No. 26-2012 (as 
amended to date), following statutory public hearings (collectively, "Area Resolution");  

WHEREAS, on June 14, 2022 the Commission adopted a resolution amending the Area 
Resolution ("Amending Declaratory Resolution") and the Original Plan to: (i) remove Parcel No. 
20-11-16-151-026.000-015 and Parcel No. 20-11-16-151-027.000-015 from the Original 
Allocation Area (collectively, "Parcels"); (ii) designate the Parcels as a new tax allocation area to 
be identified as the Indiana Avenue Allocation Area as set forth on the map attached thereto as 
Exhibit A; and (iii) add the Projects defined therein to the Original Plan ("2022 Plan"); 

WHEREAS, the Goshen Plan Commission ("Plan Commission") adopted an order on July 
19, 2022 finding that the Amending Declaratory Resolution and 2022 Plan conform to the plan of 
development for the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Act requires approval of the action of the Plan Commission by the 
Common Council of the City prior to the Commission holding a public hearing on the 
amendments; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF GOSHEN, INDIANA, THAT: 

Section 1. The action of the Plan Commission on July 19, 2022 is hereby in all respects 
approved by the Common Council. 

Section 2. The Amending Declaratory Resolution and 2022 Plan are hereby in all 
respects approved by the Common Council. 

Section 3. The Clerk-Treasurer is hereby directed to file a copy of the Amending 
Declaratory Resolution, the 2022 Plan and the approving Order of the Plan Commission with the 
permanent minutes of this meeting. 

Section 4. This resolution shall be effective from and after its passage. 

 



- 2 - 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Goshen, Indiana, 
this_____  day of August, 2022. 

 
COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GOSHEN, INDIANA 
 
_______________________________________ 
Presiding Officer 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Clerk-Treasurer 
 
 
 

Presented by me to the Mayor of the City of Goshen, Indiana, on the _____ day of August, 

2022, at __:__ _.m. 

 
   
Clerk-Treasurer 

 
Signed and approved by me, the Mayor of the City of Goshen, Indiana, this ____ day of 

August, 2022, at __:__ _.m. 

 
   
Mayor 

 
 



ORDER OF THE GOSHEN PLAN COMMISSION 
DETERMINING THAT AN AMENDING DECLARATORY RESOLUTION 

AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE 
GOSHEN REDEVELOPMENT COMMISSION CONFORM TO THE 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND APPROVING SAID 
RESOLUTION AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

WHEREAS, the City of Goshen ("City") Redevelopment Commission ("Commission") 
has created, consolidated and enlarged the Consolidated River Race/US 3 3 Economic 
Development Area ("Area"), and an allocation area coterminous with the Area known as the 
Consolidated River Race/US 33 Allocation Area ("Original Allocation Area") in accordance with 
IC 36-7-14-39 for the purpose of capturing real property taxes generated from the incremental 
assessed value of real property located in the Original Allocation Area ("Tax Increment"), and 
adopted an economic development plan, as amended ( collectively, "Original Plan"), pursuant to 
Declaratory Resolution No. 02-2012 (as amended to date), as confirmed by Confirmatory 
Resolution No. 26-2012 (as amended to date), following statutory public hearings (collectively, 
"Area Resolution"); 

WHEREAS, on June 14, 2022 the Commission adopted a resolution amending the Area 
Resolution ("Amending Declaratory Resolution") and the Original Plan to: (i) remove Parcel No. 
20-11-16-151-026.000-015 and Parcel No. 20-ll-16-151-027.000-015 from the Original 
Allocation Area ( collectively, "Parcels"); (ii) designate the Parcels as a new tax allocation area to 
be identified as the Indiana A venue Allocation Area as set forth on the map attached thereto as 
Exhibit A; and (iii) add the Projects defined therein to the Original Plan ("2022 Plan"); and 

WHEREAS, the Act requires approval of the Amending Declaratory Resolution and the 
2022 Plan by the Goshen Plan Commission ("Plan Commission"); 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE GOSHEN PLAN COMMISSION, 
AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Amending Declaratory Resolution and 2022 Plan for the Area conform to the 
Comprehensive Plan of the City. 

2. The Amending Declaratory Resolution and 2022 Plan are in all respects approved. 

3. The Secretary of the Plan Commission is hereby directed to file a copy of the 
Amending Declarato1y Resolution and 2022 Plan with the permanent minutes ofthis meeting. 



Passed by the Goshen Plan Commission, this 19th day of July, 2022. 

ATTEST: 



 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  40-2022 
 

AMENDING DECLARATORY RESOLUTION OF THE 
GOSHEN REDEVELOPMENT COMMISSION AMENDING 
THE CONSOLIDATED RIVER RACE/US 33 ALLOCATION 
AREA TO CREATE A NEW ALLOCATION AREA WITHIN 
THE CONSOLIDATED RIVER RACE/US 33 ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT AREA AND AMENDING THE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

WHEREAS, the City of Goshen ("City") Redevelopment Commission ("Commission") 
has created, consolidated and enlarged the Consolidated River Race/US 33 Economic 
Development Area ("Area"), and an allocation area coterminous with the Area known as the 
Consolidated River Race/US 33 Allocation Area ("Original Allocation Area") in accordance 
with IC 36-7-14-39 for the purpose of capturing real property taxes generated from the 
incremental assessed value of real property located in the Original Allocation Area ("Tax 
Increment"), and adopted an economic development plan, as amended (collectively, "Original 
Plan"), pursuant to Declaratory Resolution No. 02-2012 (as amended to date), as confirmed by 
Confirmatory Resolution No. 26-2012 (as amended to date), following statutory public hearings 
(collectively, "Area Resolution"); 

WHEREAS, there are no outstanding bond obligations payable from Tax Increment collected 
in the Original Allocation Area; 

WHEREAS, the Commission now desires to amend the Area Resolution to: (i) remove 
Parcel No. 20-11-16-151-026.000-015 and Parcel No. 20-11-16-151-027.000-015 from the 
Original Allocation Area (collectively, "Parcels"); (ii) designate the Parcels as a new tax 
allocation area to be identified as the Indiana Avenue Allocation Area as set forth on the map 
attached hereto as Exhibit A; and (iii) add the hereinafter defined Projects to the Original Plan 
("2022 Plan"); and 

WHEREAS, IC 36-7-14-17.5 authorizes the Commission to amend the Area Resolution 
and Original Plan, after conducting a public hearing, if it finds that: 

(a) The amendments are reasonable and appropriate when considered in 
relation to the Area Resolution, the Original Plan and the purposes of IC 36-7-14; and 

(b) The Area Resolution and Original Plan, with the proposed amendments, 
conform to the comprehensive plan for the City; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOSHEN REDEVELOPMENT 
COMMISSION THAT: 

Section 1. The Area Resolution is hereby amended to: (i) remove the Parcels from 
the Original Allocation Area in order to create a new allocation area; (ii) designate the Parcels as 
a new tax allocation area to be designated the "Indiana Avenue Allocation Area," as shown on 
Exhibit A attached hereto; and (iii) add the Projects to the 2022 Plan. 



 

- 2 - 
 

Section 2. The Commission finds that the construction of the Projects as set forth on 
Exhibit B attached hereto to facilitate the development of multi-family housing, together with all 
necessary appurtenances, related improvements and equipment, will further the Original Plan, as 
amended; that the Projects will be located in or physically connected to the Area and provide a 
substantial economic benefit to the Area, the Indiana Avenue Allocation Area and the residents 
of the City by creating needed multi-family residential housing due to the current housing 
shortage in the Area; therefore, it will be of public utility and benefit to amend the Area 
Resolution and the Original Plan to include the Projects.  The Commission further finds that the 
public health and welfare will be benefited by the amendments to the Area Resolution and 
Original Plan and the implementation of the 2022 Plan. 

Section 3. The Commission now finds and determines that the amendments 
described in Section 1 above are reasonable and appropriate when considered in relation to the 
Area Resolution, the Original Plan and the economic development purposes set forth in IC 36-7-
14.  The Commission finds that the creation of the Indiana Avenue Allocation Area and the 
adoption of the 2022 Plan conform to the comprehensive plan for the City. 

Section 4. The Original Allocation Area shall maintain its original base assessment 
date and the Indiana Avenue Allocation Area shall have a base assessment date of January 1, 
2022. 

Section 5. The allocation provisions in effect when the Original Allocation Area was 
designated as a part of the Area shall continue to apply to the Original Allocation Area. 

Section 6. This paragraph shall be considered the allocation provision for the Indiana 
Avenue Allocation Area for purposes of IC 36-7-14-39.  The Parcels shall constitute an 
allocation area as defined in IC 36-7-14-39, separate and apart from the Original Allocation Area 
designated the Indiana Avenue Allocation Area.  Any property taxes levied on or after the 
effective date of this resolution by or for the benefit of any public body entitled to a distribution 
of property taxes on taxable property in the Indiana Avenue Allocation Area shall be allocated 
and distributed in accordance with IC 36-7-14-39 or any applicable successor provision.  This 
allocation provision shall expire no later than 25 years after the date on which the first obligation 
is incurred to pay principal and interest on bonds or lease rentals on leases payable from tax 
increment in the Indiana Avenue Allocation Area. 

Section 7. The presiding officer of the Commission is hereby authorized and directed 
to submit this resolution to the Goshen Plan Commission ("Plan Commission") for its approval.  
The Commission further directs the presiding officer to submit this resolution and the approving 
order of the Plan Commission to the Common Council for its approval of the amendments to the 
Area Resolution and the Original Plan. 

Section 8. The Commission also directs the presiding officer, after receipt of the 
written order of approval of the Plan Commission which has been approved by the Common 
Council, to publish notice of the adoption and substance of this resolution in accordance with IC 
5-3-1-4 and to file notice with the Plan Commission, the Board of Zoning Appeals, the building 
commissioner and any other departments or agencies of the City concerned with unit planning, 
zoning variances, land use or the issuance of building permits.  The notice must state that maps 



 

- 3 - 
 

and plats have been prepared and can be inspected at the office of the City's department of 
redevelopment and must establish a date when the Commission will receive and hear 
remonstrances and objections from persons interested in or affected by the proceedings 
pertaining to the proposed Projects and the amendments to the Original Allocation Area, and will 
determine the public utility and benefit of the proposed amendments to the Original Area, 
Original Allocation Area and Original Plan.  Copies of the notice must also be filed with the 
officer authorized to fix budgets, tax rates and tax levies under IC 6-1.1-17-8 for each taxing unit 
that is either wholly or partly located within the proposed Indiana Avenue Allocation Area. 

Section 9. The Commission also directs the presiding officer to prepare or cause to 
be prepared a statement disclosing the impact of the creation of the Indiana Avenue Allocation 
Area, including the following:   

(a) The estimated economic benefits and costs incurred by the Indiana 
Avenue Allocation Area, as measured by increased employment and anticipated growth 
of real property, personal property and inventory assessed values; and 

(b) The anticipated impact on taxes revenues of each taxing unit that is either 
wholly or partly located within the Indiana Avenue Allocation Area. 

A copy of this statement shall be filed with each such taxing unit with a copy of the 
notice required under Section 17 of the Act at least 10 days before the date of the hearing 
described in Section 8 of this resolution. 

Section 10. The Commission hereby finds that the creation of the Indiana Avenue 
Allocation Area will reasonably result in new property taxes that would not have been generated 
without this new allocation provision because the construction of the Projects is essential to the 
development of multi-family residential housing to alleviate the housing shortage in the Original 
Area and the Indiana Avenue Allocation Area, and growth of the Original Area and the Indiana 
Avenue Allocation Area will result in new property taxes through the capture of increases in real 
property taxes to be generated by the proposed development. 

Section 11. The Commission hereby finds that the initial estimated costs of the 
Projects to be partially funded by the Commission through the use of tax increment from the 
Indiana Avenue Allocation Area are approximately $11,000,000. 

Section 12. The Commission hereby finds that all property in the Indiana Avenue 
Allocation Area will positively benefit from the 2022 Plan. 

Section 13. The Commission further directs the presiding officer to submit this 
resolution to the Common Council for its approval of the amendments to the Area Resolution 
and Original Plan. 

Section 14. In all other respects, the Area Resolution, the Original Plan and actions of 
the Commission consistent with this resolution are hereby ratified and confirmed. 

Section 15. This resolution shall be effective upon passage. 



Adopted at a meeting of the Commission held on June 14, 2022, in Goshen, Indiana. 

GOSHEN 

Member 
ATTEST: 

- 4 -



 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Map of Consolidated River Race/US 33 Economic Development Area  
And Indiana Avenue Allocation Area 

 
(Attached)



CO
UN

TY
 RO

AD
 15

GR
EE

NE
 RO

AD

U.S. 33

ELKHART ROAD    U.S. 33

COUNTY ROAD 45

COUNTY ROAD 26

BERKEY AVENUE

CLINTON STREET

BASHOR ROAD

COUNTY ROAD 36

WILDEN AVENUE

INDIANA 119

COUNTY ROAD 32

COUNTY ROAD 28

CO
UN

TY
 RO

AD
 19

9TH
 ST

RE
ET

COUNTY ROAD 24

COUNTY ROAD 30

COUNTY ROAD 126

CO
TTA

GE
 AV

EN
UE

14T
H S

TR
EE

T

IND
IAN

A A
VE

NU
E

15T
H S

TR
EE

T

INDIANA 4

CO
UN

TY
 RO

AD
 21

COLLEGE AVENUE
IND

IAN
A 1

5

PIKE STREET

11T
H S

TR
EE

T

16T
H S

TR
EE

T

PLYMOUTH AVENUE

3R
D S

TR
EE

T
HARVEST DRIVE

ZO
LL

ING
ER

 RO
AD

MAIN STREET

6TH
 ST

RE
ET

IND
IAN

A A
VE

OL
IVE

 ST
RE

ET
10T

H S
TR

EE
T

7TH
 ST

RE
ET

ST
EU

RY
 AV

EN
UE

BL
AC

KP
OR

T D
RIV

E

SE
VE

NT
H S

TR
EE

T

5TH
 ST

RE
ET

EA
GL

E D
RIV

E

12T
H S

TR
EE

T

23R
D S

TR
EE

T

WEST AVENUE

OL
D C

OU
NT

Y R
OA

D 1
7

REVERE DRIVE

RIVER AVENUE

OA
K L

AN
E

LINCOLN AVENUE

PEMBROOK LANE

COUNTY ROAD 34

CO
UN

TY
 RO

AD
 17

FO
XB

RIA
R L

AN
E

TH
IRD

 ST
RE

ET

WE
ST

WO
OD

 ST
RE

ET

AMBERWOOD DRIVE

REBECCA DRIVE

WAVERLY

CO
UN

TY
 RO

AD
 27

RIV
ER

SID
E B

OU
LE

VA
RD

WI
LL

IAM
 DR

IVE JOHNSTON STREET

KANSAS DRIVE

B STREET

MARYDALE DRIVE

REDSPIRE BOULEVARD

TWINFLOWER DRIVE

PARK WEST DRIVE

COUNTY ROAD 22

OAKRIDGE AVENUE

HA
RR

ISO
N S

TR
EE

T

LY
NW

OO
D D

RIV
E

HU
RO

N S
TR

EE
T

FIRESIDE DRIVE

GE
OR

GIA
 RO

AD
CRESCENT  STREET

FIF
TH

 ST
RE

ET

HAY PARKWAY
2N

D S
TR

EE
T

GO
RH

AM
 RO

AD

EM
ER

SO
N  

ST
RE

ET

BAKER AVENUE

KENTFIELD  WAY

JANIPER DRIVE

21S
T S

TR
EE

T

SHIRLEY DRIVE

FAWN RIVER ROAD

LOGAN STREET

GR
EE

NW
AY

 DR
IVE

 W
ES

T

SHAWNEE DRIVE MEADOW LANE
BUTTONBUSH LANE

MARSHWOOD ROAD

CROSS ROADPRINGLE DRIVE

SANDY DRIVE

HACKETT ROAD

OATFIELD COURT

GARDEN STREET

LIGHTHOUSE LANE

16T
H S

TR
EE

T

COUNTY ROAD 126

INDIANA 119

CO
UN

TY
 RO

AD
 17

IND
IAN

A 1
5

CO
UN

TY
 RO

AD
 22

COUNTY ROAD 36

COUNTY ROAD 28

COUNTY ROAD 126

11T
H S

TR
EE

T

IND
IAN

A 1
5

PLYMOUTH AVENUE

COUNTY ROAD 36

LOGAN STREET

WILDEN AVENUE

INDIANA 4

COUNTY ROAD 19

9TH
 ST

RE
ET

3R
D S

TR
EE

T

23R
D S

TR
EE

T

Co
nso

lida
ted

 Ri
ver

 Ra
ce/

US
 33

 Ec
ono

mic
 De

vel
opm

ent
 Ar

ea
Info

rm
atio

n a
s o

f Ju
ne 

14,
 20

22

´
0 860 1,720430

Feet

1 INCH = 2,367 FEET

Th
e 

C
ity

 o
f G

os
he

n'
s 

D
ig

ita
l D

at
a 

is
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

 C
ity

 o
f G

os
he

n 
an

d 
E

lk
ha

rt 
C

ou
nt

y,
 In

di
an

a.
 A

ll 
gr

ap
hi

c 
da

ta
 s

up
pl

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
ci

ty
 a

nd
 c

ou
nt

y 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

er
iv

ed
 fr

om
 p

ub
lic

 re
co

rd
s 

th
at

 a
re

co
ns

ta
nt

ly
 u

nd
er

go
in

g 
ch

an
ge

 a
nd

 is
 n

ot
 w

ar
ra

nt
ed

 fo
r c

on
te

nt
 o

r a
cc

ur
ac

y.
  T

he
 c

ity
 a

nd
 c

ou
nt

y 
do

 n
ot

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
 th

e 
po

si
tio

na
l o

r t
he

m
at

ic
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

of
 th

e 
da

ta
.  

Th
e 

ca
rto

gr
ap

hi
c 

di
gi

ta
l f

ile
s 

ar
e 

no
t a

le
ga

l r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

of
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 fe
at

ur
es

 d
ep

ic
te

d,
 a

nd
 th

e 
ci

ty
 a

nd
 c

ou
nt

y 
di

sc
la

im
 a

ny
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

le
ga

l s
ta

tu
s 

th
ey

 re
pr

es
en

t. 
 A

ny
 im

pl
ie

d 
w

ar
ra

nt
ie

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

w
ar

ra
nt

ie
s 

of
 m

er
ch

an
ta

bi
lit

y 
or

 
fit

ne
ss

 fo
r a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 p

ur
po

se
, s

ha
ll 

be
 e

xp
re

ss
ly

 e
xc

lu
de

d.
  T

he
 d

at
a 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 a

n 
ac

tu
al

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 d

at
a 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

ci
ty

's
 o

r c
ou

nt
y'

s 
co

m
pu

te
r f

ile
s.

  T
hi

s 
da

ta
 m

ay
 b

e 
in

co
m

pl
et

e 
or

 
in

ac
cu

ra
te

, a
nd

 is
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 c
ha

ng
es

. C
ity

 o
f G

os
he

n 
an

d 
El

kh
ar

t C
ou

nt
y 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
he

ld
 li

ab
le

 fo
r e

rro
rs

 o
r o

m
is

si
on

s 
in

 th
e 

da
ta

.  
Th

e 
re

ci
pi

en
t's

 u
se

 a
nd

 re
lia

nc
e 

up
on

 s
uc

h 
da

ta
 is

 a
t 

th
e 

re
ci

pi
en

t's
 ri

sk
.  

By
 u

si
ng

 th
is

 d
at

a,
 th

e 
re

ci
pi

en
t a

gr
ee

s 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

, h
ol

d 
ha

rm
le

ss
 a

nd
 in

de
m

ni
fy

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f G

os
he

n 
an

d 
E

lk
ha

rt 
C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
its

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

an
d 

of
fic

er
s.

  T
hi

s 
in

de
m

ni
ty

 c
ov

er
s 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

tto
rn

ey
 fe

es
 a

nd
 a

ll 
co

ur
t c

os
ts

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

de
fe

ns
e 

of
 th

e 
ci

ty
 a

nd
 c

ou
nt

y 
ar

is
in

g 
ou

t o
f t

hi
s 

di
sc

la
im

er
.

Th
e 

C
ity

 o
f G

os
he

n
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f P

ub
lic

 W
or

ks
 &

 S
af

et
y

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

20
4 

E
as

t J
ef

fe
rs

on
 S

tre
et

, G
os

he
n,

 In
di

an
a 

46
52

8
Ph

on
e:

 5
74

-5
34

-2
20

1 
   

 F
ax

: 5
74

-5
33

-8
62

6



IND
IAN

A A
VE

INDIANA 119 PLYMOUTH AVENUE

CO
UN

TY
 RO

AD
 21

TWINFLOWER DRIVE

LA
RIM

ER
 DR

IVE

PROFESSIONAL DRIVE (PRIVATE)

TR
EN

TO
N P

LA
CE

COPLEY COURT

Indiana Avenue Allocation Area
Information as of June 14, 2022

´
0 290 580145

Feet

1 inch = 500 feet

The City of Goshen's Digital Data is the property of the City of Goshen and Elkhart County, Indiana. All graphic data supplied by the city and county 
has been derived from public records that are constantly undergoing change and is not warranted for content or accuracy.  The city and county 
do not guarantee the positional or thematic accuracy of the data.  The cartographic digital files are not a legal representation of any of the features 
depicted, and the city and county disclaim any sumption of the legal status they represent.  Any implied warranties, including warranties of
merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose, shall be expressly excluded.  The data represents an actual reproduction of data contained in the 
city's or county's computer files.  This data may be incomplete or inaccurate, and is subject to modifications and changes. City of Goshen and 
Elkhart County cannot be held liable for errors or omissions in the data.  The recipient's use and reliance upon such data is at the recipient's risk.  
By using this data, the recipient agrees to protect, hold harmless and indemnify the City of Goshen and Elkhart County and its employees and 
officers.  This indemnity covers reasonable attorney fees and all court costs associated with the defense of the city and county arising out of this
disclaimer.

The City of Goshen
Department of Public Works & Safety

Office of Engineering
204 East Jefferson Street, Goshen, Indiana 46528

Phone: 574-534-2201     Fax: 574-533-8626

Indiana Avenue Allocation Area

I I I I I I I I I 



 

 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
The Projects consist of the following: 

 Water Main Installation 
o Connection to the existing public water mains and service to the residential units 

within the multi-family housing development ("Development"); 
 

 Sewer Main Installation 
o Connection to the existing public sewer mains and service to the residential units 

within the Development; 
 

 Sidewalk Construction  
o Construction of all sidewalks within the Development, including those required 

by Planning & Zoning; 
 

 Roadway Improvements and Construction 
o Construction of all roadway improvements required by City departments, 

including entrances into the Development as well as roadways within the 
Development; 

 
 Construction of footers and building slabs associated with the residential units;  

 
 Installation of all underground plumbing; 

 
 Installation of all underground water and sewer lines; and 

 
 Installation of underground electrical services. 

 


	8.15.22 Council Agenda
	Ordinance 5131 Establishing Common Coucil Districts
	Resolution 2022-19 Category Transfer
	Resolution 2020-20 Approving the Order of the Goshen Plan Commission



